
��������
�

��	
�
����	
������

��������
�

	��������������
�

����������� !���	"�"�

#$#���#��%�&'��(�)*�

�+�,�
+-#���,.�����/�����
 

 
���0���1!   9:07 A.M. 	12�����1!   2:42 P.M. 
 �
&'�#+'��+)+*#�!� Noel Taxin 
&�+�(��#3�#,+�.!� Karen McCall 
  
&�+�(��#�$#�%�4�#%#),!� Tammer M. Attallah 

Joyce Stowe-St. Clair 
Dennis R. Frandsen 
Patsy J. Smith 
Jean V. McAffee 
Mark de St. Aubin 

  
&�+�(��#�$#�%�	$%#),!� Steven Fisher, Chairperson 
  
1�4
��,+55�4�#%#),!� F. David Stanley, Division Administrator 
  
��4����6���1��������� � 1���������	�1���������1	����� �
  
	1�������	��0��&�������!�  
�  
	�������
	��4�����!� Joyce Stowe-St. Clair volunteered to chair the meeting 

today due to the absence of Steven Fisher, chairperson. 
�  
�������!� The minutes from the March 1, 2007 meeting were 

read. 
 
Ms. Smith made a motion to approve the minutes as 
amended.  Mr. Frandsen seconded the motion.  �7#�
&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�

  
	44���������!� �
  
��!���	"�"�   
Jan Wimmer, Probationary Interview Ms. Wimmer met for her probationary interview. 

 



Page 2 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

Mr. Frandsen conducted the probationary interview. 
 
��"�6�+)(%#)��)5���#(��%"�����#��,7+,�7#��
�#���,%�9#�#��#3#�8#("  
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that she had some difficulty 
getting the supervisor to complete the form due to 
work responsibilities. 
 
��"�6�+)(%#)��#+(�,7#��#���,%�5�����"�2#55�#.�
����%�)�+)(�5�����+%7#��#�&�%9#���5���,7#�&�+�(�
+)(��%"�����#�"�
 
�7#�&�+�(�)�,#(�,7+,�$�,7��#���,%��)(�3+,#��%"�
����#���%�+)�#:3#��#),�#����.##�+)(�3�)('3,%�
7#�%#�5����5#%%��)+��." 
 
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��%"�����#��,��(�%3'%%�7#��
,7�'*7,%��#*+�(�)*�,7#����$+,��)+�.����3#%%"���%"�
�+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,��%"�����#��,��-�
�#%��)%�$���,.�5���7#��$#7+8����,7+,�$��'*7,�7#��
$#5��#�,7#�&�+�("  
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that the whole process is very 
complicated.  She stated that there was no way she 
would have anticipated the events and probation 
happening to her.  She stated that the incident nearly 
destroyed everything she has spent so many years to 
accomplish, and that she is sure she will not put 
herself in this position again.  She concluded that she 
cannot think of anything that would be worse in her 
life. 
 
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��5�%�,'+,��)%�7+8#�3��#�'���)�7#��
9��-�9�,7�3��#),%�97#�#�%7#�7+%�7+(�,��%+.�)��,��
,7#�3��#),�+%��,�9�'�(�$#�+�$�')(+�.��%%'#"�
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that she works with 
adolescent females who want to do things for her and 
who request things from her that cross boundaries.  
She stated that the parents are also asking if they can 
give her things to thank her.  Ms. Wimmer stated that 
she always tells the clients and parents no and that 
their requests and gifts would be boundary violations 
within her professional practice. 
 



Page 3 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,��,�+��#+�%�,7+,��%"�
����#���%�%##�)*�,7#�5�+*%�3���)*�'��%,��)*"��
#�
+%-#(��5��%"�����#���%�%,����+$�#�,���+�),+�)�7#��
�+����,�9�,7�,7#�3��#),%"  
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that she has been able to 
retain the rapport with her clients. 
 
��"�6�+)(%#)�3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#��#;'��#(�
3�),�)'�)*�#('3+,��)�7+%�$##)�3����#,#("  
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that she did complete the CE 
requirement.  She then asked how many hours she 
must complete for the Licensed Substance Abuse 
Counselor (LSAC) continuing education as she has 
only been licensed about 7 months. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��%"��3�+���9����3+���7#��
�#*+�(�)*�,7#�
�	��3�),�)'�)*�#('3+,��)�+%�,7�%��%�
,7#���3�+�����-�&�+�(��##,�)*"  
 
��"�6�+)(%#)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�(�%3'%%#(�
37+)*�)*�,7#�5�#;'#)3.��5��%"�����#�<%��#���,%�
5������),7�.�,��;'+�,#��."�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�,7#�37+)*#�9�'�(�$#�
$+%#(��)��%"�����#��$#�)*�3�)%�%,#),�.��)�
3�����+)3#�9�,7�7#�����$+,��)+�.��#;'��#�#),%"�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��+(#�+���,��)�,��37+)*#�,7#�
�#;'��#�#),��5�%'$��,,�)*���),7�.�%'�#�8�%��)�
�#���,%�,��%'$��,,�)*�;'+�,#��.�%'�#�8�%��)��#���,% �
9�,7�,7#�5��%,��#���,�('#�=���),7%�5����,�(+."�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�
 
��"�6�+)(%#)��#��)(#(��%"�����#��,7+,�7#��
+����),�#),%�9�,7�,7#�&�+�(�9�����#�+�)��)�+�
;'+�,#��.�$+%�%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��5��%"�����#��7+(�+).�;'#%,��)%�
5���,7#�&�+�("  
 
Ms. Wimmer responded that her only question was in 



Page 4 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

regard to the LSAC continuing education 
requirements. 
 
	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5����%"�����#��,��
�##,�+*+�)�2'�.���������"�

  
��!���	"�"   
Megan Heath, Probationary Interview Ms. Heath met for her probationary interview. 

 
Ms. McAffee conducted the interview. 
 
�%"��3	55##�+%-#(��%"�
#+,7�7�9�%7#�7+%�$##)�
(��)*�%�)3#�7#���+%,�+����),�#),�9�,7�,7#�&�+�("  
 
Ms. Heath stated that last time she met she was 
experiencing some depression.  She explained that she 
went in to see her Doctor about 2 weeks ago and is 
now feeling a little better.  She explained that she 
thought her depression and pain was from her drug use 
but has discovered that she is suffering from 
Fibromyalgia.  She stated that she was diagnosed 
about 3 years ago but was still using drugs and thought 
the pain would go away.  Ms. Heath stated that she is 
unable to take any pain medications and that 
contributes to the depression as she knows she will 
have the pain forever.  Ms. Heath stated that she takes 
only Ibuprofen as that is all she is allowed to take 
while in Drug Court.  She stated that she is waiting to 
get into the pain management center.  Ms. Heath stated 
that she should be graduating from Drug Court in July.  
She stated that she is tired of all the requirements of 
the Drug Court and she is no longer enjoying the 
meetings.  Ms. Heath submitted documentation of her 
attendance at the AA meetings. 
 
�%"��3	55##�+%-#(��5��%"�
#+,7�7+%�+�%��)%��" 
 
Ms. Heath responded that she does.  She stated that 
her sponsor is older, has gone through some of the 
same things she has and also has teenagers.  She stated 
that they try to meet once a month.  She stated that 
Krista Aller is still her supervisor. 
 
�%"��3	55##�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"�	��#�<%��#���,%�+�#�
8#�.�(�55�3'�,�,���#+(�+)(�%7#��#;'#%,#(��%"�
#+,7�
+%-��%"�	��#��,��,�.�,��$#����#�3�#+���)�7#��9��,�) *�



Page 5 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�5�,7#��#���,%"���%"��3	55##�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"�	��#��
�#���,#(�,7+,��%"�
#+,7�7+)(�#(�+�%�,'+,��)�9�,7�+�
3�>9��-#���)�+���%�,�8#�+)(����5#%%��)+���+))#�"��
�7#��#;'#%,#(�,7+,��%"�
#+,7�#:��+�)�,7#�%�,'+,��)�
5���,7#�&�+�("  
 
Ms. Heath explained that she has a Social Service 
Worker co-worker.  She stated that she and the SSW 
would like to work more hours but the SSW asked her 
not to approach the Director at this time and she has 
chosen to wait to talk to the Director about more 
hours. 
 
�%"��3	55##�3���#),#(�,7+,��%"�	��#��+�%��%,+,#(�
�)�,7#��#���,�,7+,��%"�
#+,7<%�9��-���+(�+��#+�%�
,��$#�,����'37"���7#�+%-#(��%"�
#+,7�,���#%��)(�,��
,7+,�3���#),"  
 
Ms. Heath explained that she is doing psycho-social 
assessments and should be doing more of the clinical 
supervision hours.  She stated that she would like to 
complete her 4000 hours, her probation and court 
requirements so that she can start a private practice.  
She asked if she has to wait to submit her application 
for LCSW until she has completed her probation. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�%7#�9�'�(�)##(�,��
3����#,#�,7#��#;'��#(������7�'�%��5�%'�#�8�%#(�
#:�#��#)3#�$',�3�'�(�%'$��,�7#��+����3+,��)�5���,7# �

����������,��3����#,�)*�,7#����$+,��)"���%"�
�+:�)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,��%"�
#+,7�9�'�(�%,����7+8#�,��
$#�')(#��%'�#�8�%��)�+)(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#��9�'�(�7+8#�,��$#�+�#)(#(�9�,7�7#��+*�##�)*�
,��,7#�,#��%��5�,7#�+�#)(#(���(#�"�
 
Ms. Heath stated that she wants to be doing in-depth 
work in the clinical field.  She stated that she might try 
to take the ASWB clinical examination this summer so 
it would be completed.  Ms. Heath stated that she has 
applied for a couple of jobs but has not yet been 
successful in obtaining different employment. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5��%"�
#+,7�7+%�)�,�3#(�
+).�,��**#�%�,��%,+�,�'%�)*�(�'*%�+*+�)�9�,7�7#��
7#+�,7�%�,'+,��)��7#��#����.�#),�+)(�7#��%,�#%%#%"  
 



Page 6 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

Ms. Heath responded that she has noticed triggers and 
has been telling her counselor that she usually does not 
think about taking pain medications but she did have a 
week-end that she strongly considered taking 
medications to relieve the pain she was experiencing.  
She stated that she has talked with her Doctor and 
asked what happens if the pain gets to be too much.  
Ms. Heath stated that she believes it is easier to cope 
with the pain if there is no other option and, at this 
time, there is no other option. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#��+�)��+)+*#�#),�3#),#��
9����7#���7#��5�)(�+�,#�)+,�8#%�,��,7#��#(�3+,��)%�
+)(�9����7#���7#���#*'�+,#�,7#��+�)"�
�
�%"��3	55##�3���#),#(�,7+,�2'�.��%��)�.�=����#�
��),7%�+)(�,7+,��%"�
#+,7�9����$#�3����#,#�9�,7�
,7#�(�'*�3�'�,��#;'��#�#),%"�
�
�7#��)5���#(��%"�
#+,7�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�7+%�
(�%3'%%#(�37+)*�)*�,7#��#;'��#�#),��5���),7�.�
�#���,%�5����7#��%'�#�8�%���+)(�,7#�+��%,�,��
;'+�,#��.��#���,%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��,�+��#+�%�,7+, �
�%"�
#+,7��,7#�%'�#�8�%���+)(�,7#�,7#�+��%,�+�#�
+9+�#��5��%"�
#+,7<%��%%'#%�+)(�,7+,��%"�
#+,7��%�
5����9�)*�,7��'*7�9�,7��#3���#)(+,��)%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��5��%"�
#+,7�7+(�+).�3�)3#�)%�
�#*+�(�)*�37+)*�)*�,7#�5�#;'#)3.��5�,7#��#���,%"  
 
Ms. Heath responded that it has been almost a year 
since the reports were started and she has no concerns 
changing the reports from monthly to quarterly. 
 
��"�	,,+��+7��+(#�+���,��)�5���,7#��#;'��#�#),��5��
%'$��,,�)*���),7�.��#���,%�5�����1+)�
#�)#���
#����.#������%,+�	��#���%'�#�8�%����+)(��7#�#%+��"�
�3�#����,7#�+��%,��$#�37+)*#(�,��%'$��,,�)*�
;'+�,#��.��#���,%"�
�
��"�6�+)(%#)�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�3�+��5�#(�,���%"�
#+,7�,7+,�,7#�#����.#�� �
%'�#�8�%���+)(�,7#�+��%,�9����%,����$#��#;'��#(�,��



Page 7 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

%'$��,��#���,%�$',��)�+�;'+�,#��.�$+%�%"�
 
	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5����%"�
#+,7�,���##,�
+*+�)�2'�.���������"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��%"�
#+,7�,���#;'#%,��%"�	��#��,��
9��,#����#�3�#+��.�+)(�,��7+8#�,7#��#���,%�%#),�,��
,7#�1�8�%��)�+$�',���9##-%�������,��,7#�&�+�(�
�##,�)*%"  

  
��!���	"�"   
Kendall Lowe, Discuss Supervision of Interns 
and CSW’s 

Mr. Lowe met for his appointment. 
 
�%"��+:�)�,7+)-#(���"�
�9#�5����##,�)*�9�,7�,7#�
&�+�("���7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�7#�9+%��#;'#%,#(�,��
�##,�,��(�%3'%%�7�%��#�%�#3,�8#��#*+�(�)*�
%'�#�8�%��)��5������),#�)%�+)(����<%�+%�7#�9+%�
�+,,��+��'+<%�3��)�3+��%'�#�8�%���5����+).�.#+�%"��
�%"��+:�)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�&�+�(�
9#�#�3�)3#�)#(�+$�',���"��+��'+<%�3��)�3+��
#:�#��#)3#�+%�7#�*�+('+,#(�9�,7�,7#���3�+�����-�
	(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-��+).�.#+�%�+*�"���7#�%,+,#(�
,7+,���"��+��'+�9+%���3#)%#(�+%�+������)��+.�
� /��+)(�+����#(�5���,7#�
�3#)%#(����)�3+����3�+��
���-#��?
���@���3#)%#��)��3,�$#���  A"���%"�
�+:�)��)5���#(���"�
�9#�,7+,�,7#�
����9+%�
(#)�#(�+%���"��+��'+�7+(�)�,�3����#,#(�,7#�
3��)�3+��3�'�%#%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�+*+�) �
+����#(�5���,7#�
�����)�1#3#�$#�����A�+)(�,7+,�
+����3+,��)�9+%�(#)�#(�$+%#(��)���"��+��'+�)�,�
3����#,�)*�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�
,7+,���"��+��'+�9+%��)5���#(��)��  A�+)(�+*+�)�
�)����A�,7+,�7#��'%,�7+8#�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�,��$ #�
(��)*��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�."���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+, �
�,��%�+�3�)3#�)�,��,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�,7#�&�+�(�5���
��"��+��'+�,��3�),�)'#�,����+3,�3#��#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+�.�9�,7�',�3����#,�)*�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�
$#3+'%#��,��%��',��5�7�%�%3��#��5���+3,�3#"�
 
Mr. Lowe explained that when he started supervising 
Mr. Kaopua he checked the website to be sure Mr. 
Kaopua was licensed and the website documents a 
CSW license.  Mr. Lowe stated that Mr. Kaopua had 
told him that he did a clinical internship at the 
Veterans Administration.  He stated that with the 
verification of the CSW and the clinical internship at 



Page 8 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

the VA he thought it would be appropriate to supervise 
Mr. Kaopua in mental health therapy. 
 
Mr. Lowe stated that he was concerned and somewhat 
baffled when he read the 1996 and 2007 letters of 
denial the Division sent to Mr. Kaopua. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�3�),+3,#(�,7#��)�8#�%�,.�
�5��,+7�+)(�9+%��)5���#(�,7+,�,7#.�7+(���(�55#�#),�
,�+3-%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�9+%��)5���#(�,7+,�,7#�
%,'(#),%�9#�#��)5���#(�,7+,�,7#.�3�'�(�)�,�#)*+*#�
�)�3��)�3+����+3,�3#�9�,7�,7#�+(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-�
$',�3�'�(�,+-#�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�,��3����#,#�$�, 7�
,�+3-%"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�
�)(�3+,#(�,7+,���"�
�9#�9+%�+9+�#��5�7�%�
+(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-�+)(�%'����,#(���"��+��'+��)�
(��)*��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�."���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+, �
+��#3#),�*�+('+,#�9�'�(�7+8#�,7#�3��)�3+��,�+3-�+%�
,7#����5���)�9��55#�%��)�.�,7#�3��)�3+��,�+3-"�
 
Mr. Lowe responded that he has a copy of Mr. 
Kaopua’s degree which documents the MSW.  He 
stated that he had no idea that the U of U had 2 tracks 
years ago.  Mr. Lowe stated that most of the 
supervision has been face to face, in person for the 
first 2 or 3 years.  He stated that now he does some 
web-cam and some telephonic supervision but also 
still does some face to face. 
 
�%"��+:�)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�%�)3#���"��+��'+�7+%�,7#�
+(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-�,7#�7�'�%���"�
�9#�7+%�
%'�#�8�%#(�9����)�,�3�'),�,�9+�(�,7#�
����
��3#)%#"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��)3#���"��+��'+�
3����#,#%�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�7#��+.�%,+�,�,7#�
�#;'��#(������7�'�%��5�%'�#�8�%#(�#:�#��#)3#"���7#�
%,+,#(�,7+,��#(��)*�,7#�7�'�%��%�+�%�+���
3�)%#;'#)3#�5�����"��+��'+"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�
�+��'+�+)(�,7#����5���9#�#�')+$�#�,��(�3'�#),�
,7#�0	���+3,�3'��+)(�7#��+.�+�%��7+8#�,���#(��,7#�
��+3,�3'�"��
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�3���#),#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�7+(�
+��#%#+�37����B#3,�,7+,���%,#(�7���+%�+)��),#�)�+,�
,7#�0	�')(#��%'�#�8�%��)��5�
.))�����%�)"����"�(#�
�,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#��)5���+,��)���#%#),#(�
9�'�(�$#�3�)%�(#�#(�+%�+�8#��5�3+,��)��5�3����#,�)* �



Page 9 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

,7#���+3,�3'��+,�,7#�0	"�
 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�7+%�-)�9)�,7+,�
7#�3�'�(�)�,�(���#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�.�9�,7�',�
3����#,�)*�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�$+%#(��)�,7#����5�� �
)�,�5�3+,��)�,��%,'(#),%��$�,7�
����(#)�+�%�+)(�7�% �
3+���)*�%#8#�+��,��#%��8#��,7#�.#+�%�5���3�+��5�3+,��)"��
�7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�#�9#�#�)��3����+�),%�5����
3��#),%�5��,')+,#�.�+)(��,�9+%�3�)%�(#�#(�%#�5�
�#���,�)*�97#)�7#�%'$��,,#(�+)�+����3+,��)"�
 
Mr. Lowe commented that Mr. Kaopua has thousands 
of hours of supervision and he had pushed Mr. Kaopua 
to apply for the LCSW not realizing the limitations. 
 
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(���"�
�9#��5�7#�,7�)-%���"�
�+��'+��%�%+5#�,����+3,�3#�)�9�,7+,���"�
�9#�
')(#�%,+)(%�,7#�%�,'+,��)�+)(�
+9��#*+�(�)*�
	(��)�%,�+,�8#���+3-��('3+,��)"  
 
Mr. Lowe responded that he supports the Utah Laws 
and Rules.  He stated that Mr. Kaopua is a very 
competent practitioner and better than some of the 
LCSW’s Mr. Lowe works with. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(���"�
�9#��5�7#�7+%��#+(�,7#�
�,+7�
+9%�+)(��'�#%"  
 
Mr. Lowe responded that he has read them many 
times. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�,7#�
+9�7+%�,7#�
%�#3�5�3�3�'�%#%��#;'��#(�5�����"��+��'+�,��
3����#,#"��
#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�,7#����5���(#,#���)#(�
��"��+��'+�9����)##(�	(8+)3#(�4�+3,�3#���+)(����
+)(��)#����,9��#�#3,�8#%"����"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�
,7+,�7#�$#��#8#%���"��+��'+�9����$#�,+-�)*�,7#�
1���3�+%%�+%��)#��5�,7#�#�#3,�8#%�+)(�7+%�#�#3,#(�,��
,+-#�,7#���+3,�3'�"�
 
Mr. Lowe responded that he has been supervising Mr. 
Kaopua for the practicum which will be completed 
April 26, 2007.  Mr. Lowe asked if Mr. Kaopua should 
continue working under him or not. 
 



Page 10 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�
�9#�%7�'�(�#)3�'�+*#�
��"��+��'+�,��3����#,#�,7#�3�'�%#"���7#�%,+,#(�
,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�&�+�(�3�'�(�+((�#%%�,7#�
�#;'��#(������7�'�%��5�%'�#�8�%��)�+5,#��,7#�
3�'�%#%�+�#�3����#,#("�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�9����
3����#,#�,7#�%#3�)(��5�7�%�����+3,�3#�3�'�%#%��)�
1#3#�$#������"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�3+))�,�+3,��)�+�
3��)�3+��3+�+3�,.�+5,#��7�%���+3,�3'��#)(%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�%�,'+,��)��%�5�'%,�+,�)*" ��
�7#�+%-#(�97.���"��+��'+�9�'�(�3�),�)'#�
9��-�)*�9�,7�3��#),%�+)(��',�,7#��+)(�7��%#�5�+,�
��%-�97#)�7#�-)#9�,7#��#;'��#�#),%�5����#),+��
7#+�,7�,7#�+�.���+3,�3#"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��+.$#�,7#�&�+�(�3�'�(�
(�%3'%%�+)(��+-#�+�(#3�%��)��#*+�(�)*�9��-�)*�
9�,7�3��#),%�+5,#��,7#���+3,�3'���%�3����#,#"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5�,7#������:,#�)���3#)%#�
9�'�(�$#�+�������+,#�5�����"��+��'+"�
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#������:,#�)�9�'�(�
)�,�$#�+�������+,#�+%�7#�+��#+(.�7+%�,7#����"���7#�
+%-#(���"�
�9#�,���+-#�%'�#�7#�3�),�)'#%�,��
%'�#�8�%#���"��+��'+�+%�+)��),#�)�+)(�,7#�&�+�(�
9����(�%3'%%�,7#��%%'#��5�3�'),�)*�,7#�%'�#�8�%#(�
7�'�%��+,#�"  
 
Mr. Lowe stated that Mr. Kaopua is doing some 
diagnosing with kids and asked if that is appropriate. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��,�9�'�(�$#�+�������+,#�
97��#�7#��%�(��)*�,7#���+3,�3'�"���7#�8��3#(�
5�'%,�+,��)�9�,7���"��+��'+�5����',,�)*�,7#�
1�8�%��)��,7#�&�+�(����"�
�9#�+)(�7��%#�5��)�,7�%�
��%�,��)"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�7+%�,7#�������3#)%#��
7#�7+%��+%%#(�,7#�3��)�3+��	��&�#:+��)+,��)�+)(�
��"�
�9#�+%%'�#%�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�&�+�(�,7+,���"�
�+��'+��%�+�3���#,#),���+3,�,��)#�"���7#�+%-#(�,7#�
&�+�(��5�,7#.�9+),���"��+��'+�,��3�),�)'#�
9��-�)*�')(#��%'�#�8�%��)"���7#�+%-#(��5�,7#�&�+�(�



Page 11 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

9+),%�,��*�8#���"��+��'+�3�#(�,�5���%��#��5�,7#�
�#;'��#(������7�'�%"�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5�,7#�#�9����$#�+��,��'�+,� �)�
+)(���(#��5�����"��+��'+�+)(��5�,7#�#��%��3�'�(�
,7#��+)*'+*#��)3�'(#�%��#�%�#3�5�3��#;'��#�#),%�+%�
(�%3'%%#(�,�(+."�
�
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�	�<%��55�3#��%�
3�#+,�)*�+�(�55#�#),�,.�#��5��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��
97�37�%,+,#%�,7+,��5�7#���+3,�3#%��',��5�7�%�%3��#�7#�
�%�37+�*#(�C����"����#��(+."  
 
Mr. Lowe stated that he terminated Mr. Kaopua as an 
employee in December when he found out about the 
denial of the LCSW license.  He stated that Mr. 
Kaopua is not paid for his practicum work. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�7+%�$##)�
9��-�)*�5������.#+�%��',��5�7�%�%3��#��5�#('3+,��)" ��
�7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�7�'�%�+�#�)�,�,��3�'),�,�9+�(�
,7#�
����'),���+5,#��,7#�#('3+,��)��%�3����#,#"��
�7#�+*+�)�+%-#(��5�,7#�&�+�(�9�'�(�+33#�,�+).��5�
,7#�7�'�%�7#�7+%�3����#,#(�+)(��5�,7#.�9+),�7���
��)�,��#(�'),���7#�3����#,#%�+���,7#��#;'��#(�
3��)�3+��3�'�%#%"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�7#�$#��#8#%���"�
�+��'+�)##(%�,��$#�%'�#�8�%#(�'),���7#�3����#,#%�
+���,7#��#;'��#(�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(���"�
�9#��5�7#�%'�#�8�%#(�+��������
7�'�%�9�,7���"��+��'+"  
 
Mr. Lowe responded that he did supervise all 4000 
hours.  He stated that Mr. Kaopua was a part-time 
employee and worked about 30 hours a week.  Mr. 
Lowe commented that he is not sure he wants to go 
through another 4000 hours supervising Mr. Kaopua 
as he is now the clinical director and no longer acts as 
a supervisor. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�
�9#�9�'�(�7+8#�,��
8#��5.�,7#������7�'�%�+%�7#��%�,7#��)�.�%'�#�8�%���
��"��+��'+�7+%�7+("�
 



Page 12 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�7#��%�
')3��5��,+$�#��#;'���)*����#�7�'�%�,7+)�,7#�
+9�
�#;'��#%�+%�+��')�,�8#��#+%'�#"��
#�%,+,#(�,7+,���" �
�+��'+�7+%�3����#,#(�+����:��+,#�.��=���7�'�%�+�
.#+�"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7��#%��)(#(�,7+,���"��+��'+<%�
%�,'+,��)��%���-#�+�1�3,���(��)*�+���7#�9+),%�
�#(�3+��.�+)(�)�,�3����#,�)*�,7#��#(�3+��3�'�%#%"��

#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�7�'�%�9�'�(�)�,�$#�8+��("�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�9�'�(�
7+8#�,��9��-�+5,#��7#�3����#,#%�+���,7#�3��)�3+��
3�'�%#%��)�1#3#�$#�"�
 
�%"��,�9#>�,"���+����#%��)(#(�,7+,��#���#�+�#�
$��'*7,�$#5��#�,7#�&�+�(�+)(�(�%3����)#(�5���,7#�
,7�)*%�,7#.�7+8#�(�)#�+)(�)�9�,7#�&�+�(��%�
(�%3'%%�)*���"��+��'+�+%�$#�)*�%�#3�+�"���7#�%,+,#( �
,7+,�,7#�
+9�%+.%�,7+,�.�'�(���#;'��#�#),%��)�+�
%�#3�5�3���(#�"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+��+.�
7+8#�(�)#�,7#�7�'�%�$',�7#�(�(�)�,�(��,7#��
7�)#%,�."�
 
Mr. Lowe commented that in talking with Mr. Kaopua 
he indicated that he was not really aware of what he 
could do and what he could not do.  Mr. Lowe stated 
that he is not sure the agency will retain Mr. Kaopua 
after the practicum is completed. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��%"��3�+���7+%�$##)�
7#�#��/�.#+�%�+)(�%7#��%�,7#��#�%�)�97��9��,#�,7#�
�)�,�+��(#)�+���#,,#��,����"��+��'+"���7#�%,+,#(�,7 +,�
�%"��3�+���7+%�+�%��,+�-#(�9�,7�7���,7��'*7�,7#�
.#+�%"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+��+(#�
3���#),%�,��,7#�&�+�(�+)(�,7#)�37+)*#(�7�%�%,��.�
97#)�7#�,+�-#(�9�,7�7#��+)(�2'(��2#)%#)��	���
%#�+�+,#�."���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#��%��5�,7#�
���)��)�,7+,���"��+��'+�9+%�+9+�#��5�,7#�
#('3+,��)�+)(�,7#���+3,�3#��5��#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+�.��#;'��#�#),%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,7#�+*#)3.�(�#%�)�,��#,+�) �
��"��+��'+�,7+,��,�9�'�(�$#�,7#�)+,'�+��
3�)%#;'#)3#%�5���7�%�+3,��)%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�
+)(�,7#�&�+�(�%7�'�(�7+)(�#�,7#%#�%�,'+,��)%�5+���. "��



Page 13 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�7#�+*+�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+��'+�-)#9�97#)�7#�
�#3#�8#(�,7#�����,7+,�7#�3�'�(�)�,�(���#),+��
7#+�,7�,7#�+�.�9�,7�',�,7#�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%�+%�
+�� .�
���,7�+,�,7#����5���9+%�8#�.�3�#+���)�,7+,�#8#�.�
%,'(#),�9+%�)�,�5�#(�97#)�,7#.��#*�%,#�#(�5���,7#�
+(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�3+)�
')(#�%,+)(�%��#���%')(#�%,+)(�)*�$',�,7#�#�+�#�
�#,,#�%�,��(�3'�#),�,7+,�7#�9+%�)�,�5�#(����.#+�%�
+*�"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��5���"��+��'+��%�)�,��)�+)�
�),#�)%7���7#�3+))�,�9��-��)��#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+�."�
�
�%"��+:�)�3�)3�'(#(�,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�&�+�(�
9����3�),+3,���"�
�9#��5�,7#���(#3�%��)��#*+�(�)*�
3�'),�)*�+).��5���"��+��'+<%�7�'�%�������,��
3����#,��)��5�,7#��#;'��#(�3��)�3+��3�'�%#%"  
 
��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#�#����.##��%�
�#%��)%�$�#�,��$#�7�)#%,��#*+�(�)*�,7#�����3#)%#�
%3��#�+%�,7#�#����.#���)�.�-)�9%�,7+,�,7#.�7��(�
,7#�������3#)%#"��
#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�
�9#�
%'�#�8�%#(�����#��.�9�,7�',�-)�9�)*���"��+��'+�
3�'�(�)�,�#)*+*#��)��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�."����"�
	,,+��+7�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�5##�%�$+(�+$�',���"�
�9#"�
�
�%"����,7�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,7#�#�+�#��,7#�%��)�,7�%�
%�,'+,��)��5�7+8�)*�,7#�����9�,7�,7#�
+(��)�%,�+,�8#�,�+3-�,7#)�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�,7#�
&�+�(�)##(�,��%#,�,7#���#3#(#)3#�+)(�5����9��,�5���
+����5�,7#%#�3+%#%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#��%��5�,7#����)��)�,7+,��� "�
�+��'+�%7�'�(�3����#,#�,7#�3�'�%#%�+)(�,7#)�
3����#,#�,7#��#;'��#(������7�'�%��5�%'�#�8�%#(�
#:�#��#)3#�+%�,7+,��%�,7#���(#���)�,7#�
+9�+)(��'�# "�
�
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,�%7#��#,�%#8#�+��,��#%�
9�,7���"��+��'+�+)(��55#�#(�7���+��,��'�+,��)�$',�
7#�7+%�)�,�.#,��#%��)(#("�
 
��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,�7#�9�'�(�5##�����#�
5�#:�$�#��5�,7#�#�9+%�)��(�3'�#),+,��)�,7+,���"�
�+��'+�7+(�$##)��)5���#(��'�,���#�,��#%��8#��,7#�
.#+�%"��
#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�
�9#�,�'%,#(���"�
�+��'+�+)(�7+%�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�9+%�+�*��(�3��)�3�+)" �
 



Page 14 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

��"�6�+)(%#)�3���#),#(�,7+,��,�+��#+�%�,7+,���"�
�+��'+�-)�9%�97+,�7#��%�(��)*��)�3�)('3,�)*�
�#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�."��
#�+%-#(��5�,7#�&�+�(�
9+),#(�,��7��(�,��,7#��#,,#���5�,7#�
+9�+)(��'�#%�� ��
,��,7#�%����,��5�,7#�
+9�+)(��'�#%"��
#�%,+,#(�,7+, �
��"��+��'+�9+%��)5���#(�%#8#�+��,��#%�+)(�-)#9�
97+,�7#�%7�'�(�$#�(��)*�,��5����9�,7#�
+9�+)(�
�'�#%"����"�6�+)(%#)�%,+,#(��5�7#�9#�#���"��+��'+�
+)(�7+(�$##)��)5���#(�7#�9+%�(��)*�%��#,7�)*�
�)3���#3,�.��7#�9�'�(�7+8#�3���#3,#(�,7#����$�#�"�
 
���5���+��(#3�%��)�9+%��+(#�+,�,7�%�,��#"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�,7+)-#(���"�
�9#�5���3���)*�+)(�
(�%3'%%�)*���"��+��'+<%��%%'#%"�

  
��!���	"�"   
Jennie Gwilliam, Probationary Interview Ms. Gwilliam met for her probationary interview. 

 
Mr. Attallah conducted the interview. 
 
��"�	,,+��+7��)5���#(��%"��9����+��,7+,�7#��
%'�#�8�%��)��#���,%�9#�#��#3#�8#("�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�+%-#(��%"��9����+���5�%7#�9�'�(���-#�
,��'�(+,#�,7#�&�+�(��)�+).�37+)*#%��)�7#��
#����.�#),"  
 
Ms. Gilliam voiced concern about the meeting being 
recorded and asked if the meeting could be closed in 
order for her to talk freely and feel safe. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��##,�)*%�+�#�3��%#(�5���
�#),+��3�)(�,��)%����%+5#,.��#+%�)%"���7#�%'**#%,#( �
,7#�&�+�(�%,+�,�$.��#8�#9�)*�,7#��#���,%�+)(��5��,�
+��#+�%�)#3#%%+�.�,7#)�3��%#�,7#��##,�)*"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��9����+��9+%�+%-#(�+�
;'#%,��)�+)(�+%-#(��5��%"������+��5#�,�3��5��,+$�#�
�)��#%��)(�)*�,��,7#�;'#%,��)"�
 
Ms. Gwilliam responded that she would answer the 
question.  She stated that she is doing training with the 
line staff.  She stated that she still does work with 
Lynne Clark-Brunson as there are many issues and 
trauma in the background of the adolescent boys at the 



Page 15 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

facility. 
 
Ms. Gwilliam stated that she is also working with 
some couples with adoptions.  She stated that one 
family was listed in a St. George newspaper and the 
article talked about their success in adopting and about 
the progress the family has made through therapy.  She 
stated that her name was not listed in the paper.  Ms. 
Gwilliam explained that it is a challenge for children 
coming from war torn countries to the United States 
and being adopted into a family here.  She stated that 
she does role playing, play therapy and teaches the 
family about the children’s loss. 
 
Ms. Gwilliam stated that she does some EMD and just 
returned from a seminar regarding the EMD. 
 
��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,��,�+��#+�%��%"�
�9����+���%�*#,,�)*���+3,�3#�9�,7�+(��)�%,�+,�8#�
(',�#%"�
�

#�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��9����+��7+%�3�)%�%,#),�.��#,�
;'+�,#��.�+)(�7+%�7+(��#���,%�3�)%�%,#),�.�
%'$��,,#(��)�+���),7�.�$+%�%"����"�	,,+��+7�%,+,#(�
,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��%�3�)%�(#��)*��#;'���)*�,7#��#���,% �
,��$#�%'$��,,#(��)�+�;'+�,#��.�$+%�%"�
 
Ms. Gwilliam stated that she wanted to share some 
information with the Board but would not do so unless 
the meeting was closed. 
 
	,�,7�%����),���"�(#��,"�	'$�)��+(#�+���,��)�,��
3��%#�,7#��##,�)*�$+%#(��)�%+5#,.��%%'#%��37+�+3,#��
+)(��#),+��9#��>$#�)*��5�,7#����$+,��)#�"�
�
��"�6�+)(%#)�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�
�
��!=��	"�"�,7#��##,�)*�9+%��#��#)#(�9�,7�+�
')+)���'%�8�,#"�
 
��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,��%"��9����+��7+%�
�+�),+�)#(�3�����+)3#�9�,7�7#���,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#��+)(�3����#,#(�7#���#;'��#�#),%�#:3#�,�7#��
,��#"  



Page 16 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

 
Ms. Gwilliam responded that she would like to request 
early termination based on her continued compliance. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��9����+���+.�+%-�5���
#+��.�,#���)+,��)�$',�,7+,��%"��+:�)�9�'�(�7+8#�,��
�#8�#9�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��,��%##��5�,7#�
3�)(�,��)%�+���9�5���#+��.�,#���)+,��)�$',�%7#��+.�
%'$��,�+�5���+���#;'#%,�5����7#�%#�5�9�,7�+�
%'��+�.��5�,7#�%�,'+,��)�,7+,�3+'%#(�7#��,��$#��)�
���$+,��)"���7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�+��#,,#��5����
.))#�
��+�->&�')%�)�+)(�+��#,,#��5����&�'3#�
'��7��#%�
�%�+�%���#;'��#(�%,+,�)*�,7+,�,7#.�%'����,�7#��
�#;'#%,�5���#+��.�,#���)+,��)�$+%#(��)�,7#����9)�
%�#3�5�3�5+3,%"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��9����+� �
�+.�+�%��9+),�,���#;'#%,�,7#��)�8#�%�,.�,��9��,#�+�
�#,,#���5�%'����,�+%�%7#�7+%�9��-#(�5���,7#�"���%"�
�+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��5��%"��9����+��9����%'$��,�,7#�
�)5���+,��)�������,��,7#�2'�.�����������##,�)*�,7#�
&�+�(�9�����#8�#9�+)(�(�%3'%%��,�9�,7�7#��+,�,7+,�
�##,�)*"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,#���)+,��)��%�
+���9#(�$.�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��,7#)�,7#�
&�+�(D1�8�%��)�9����3�)%�(#��7#���#;'#%,"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�+%-#(��5�,7#��#���,%�%7�'�(�3�),�)'#�
'),���2'�.�+)(�,7#)��#+((�#%%�+,�,7+,�,��#"  
 
Ms. Gwilliam commented that she would be unable to 
attend the July meeting due to being needed by family 
members who are having children in July.  She 
requested she her next appointment be in August. 
 
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,��5��%"��9����+���#,��)�
�#�,#�$#��,7#)�,7#�#�9�'�(�$#���;'+�,#��.��#���,%�
,���#8�#9��,7#�2')#�+)(�	'*'%,��#���,%"���7#�
�#3���#)(#(��%"��9����+��%'$��,�7#���#;'#%,%�
5���#+��.�,#���)+,��)�9�,7�,7#�	'*'%,��#���,%"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�+�#)(#(�7�%����*�)+����,��)�,��
�)3�'(#��%"��9����+���##,�+*+�)��#�,#�$#��A��
������9�,7��#���,%�('#��)�2')#�+)(�	'*'%,�+)(���5�
�%"��9����+��9+),%�#+��.�,#���)+,��)��5�7#��
���$+,��)��,���)3�'(#�9�,7�,7#�	'*'%,��#���,%�
�#,,#�%�5����&�'3#�
'��7��#%�+)(�
.))#���+�->
&�')%�)�9�,7��#3���#)(+,��)%�+)(�+��#,,#���5�
�#;'#%,�5����7#�%#�5"�



Page 17 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�
�%"����,7�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�
�
	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5����%"��9����+��,��
�##,�+*+�)��#�,#�$#��A������"�

  
��!���	"�"   
Robert Marshall, Probationary Interview Mr. Marshall met for his probationary interview. 

 
Mr. de St. Aubin conducted the interview. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�7+%�$##)�
)�,�5�#(�,7+,���"��+�%7+���7+%��+(#�%��#�37+)*#%�
�)�7�%�#����.�#),"��
#�+%-#(���"��+�%7+���,��
'�(+,#�,7#�&�+�("�
 
Mr. Marshall responded that his supervisor, Carol 
Williams, talked about a better placement for him.  He 
stated that he is now at an all boy’s facility in Milford, 
Utah and likes working there.  He stated that his 
employer at Integrity House had concerns regarding 
the incident that caused him to be on probation.  Mr. 
Marshall explained that Greg Hurst is the facility 
administrator and Dennis Budd will be his supervisor.  
Mr. Marshall stated that the name of the facility is 
Lost and Found Youth Academy.  He commented that 
he will be eating lunch in the same cafeteria where he 
ate lunch in elementary school as the old school was 
refurbished.   
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��3�+���)�,�5�#(�
,7#�&�+�(�,7+,���"��+�%7+���3+��#(��#*+�(�)*�7�%�
37+)*#��)�#����.�#),"��
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,��(+,#�,7#�1�8�%��)�7+%�
�#3#�8#(��)�.��)#��#,,#��+)(�,7+,�9+%�5����1#))�%�
&'((�97��5+:#(��,�,7�%����)�)*"�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#��)(#(���"��+�%7+���,7+,�,7#�
�,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#���#;'��#%�7���,��)�,�5.�,7#�
1�8�%��)D&�+�(�$.��#,,#��9�,7�)��)#�9##-��5�+).�
37+)*#��)�#����.�#),"�
�
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,��%"��3�+����)5���#(�



Page 18 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

��"��+�%7+���,7+,�7#�)##(#(�,��%'$��,�,7#�
�)5���+,��)��)�9��,�)*�9�,7�+��#,,#��5����,7#�
��#8��'%�#����.#��+)(�%'�#�8�%����#*+�(�)*�,7#�
37+)*#�+)(��#,,#�%�5����,7#�3'��#),�#����.#��+)(�
%'�#�8�%���%,+,�)*�,7#.�7+8#��#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�
+)(���(#��+)(�9����%'����,���"��+�%7+����)�
3����#,�)*�,7#��#;'��#�#),%��5�7�%����$+,��)"���%"�
�+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��3�+����#�+.#(�,7#��#%%+*#�
,7+,���"��+�%7+����)5���#(�7#��,7+,��%"��+:�)�
7+(�,��(�7���7#��)�.�)##(%�,��3+���7#���#*+�(�)*�+�
37+)*#��)�7�%�#����.�#),�+)(�%'�#�8�%���+)(�
9�'�(�)�,�$#�%'$��,,�)*�,7#��)5���+,��)��)�9��,�)*" ��
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�(�(�)�,��#3+���,7+,�
3�)8#�%+,��)"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�,��#(�,��
3�),+3,���"��+�%7+���,��#:��+�)�,7#��#;'��#�#),%�
+)(�9+%�')+$�#�,���#+37�7���%��%7#�3�),+3,#(�
�+���������+�%��7�%�%'�#�8�%���+,��),#*��,.�
�'%#��
+)(�+%-#(�7#��,��%'$��,�,7#��#,,#���#*+�(�)*�,7#�
,#���)+,��)"�
 
Mr. Marshall responded that the facility had family 
weekend.  He stated that he left the information with 
Integrity House.  He stated that he then contacted the 
new employer and asked them to submit the requested 
information.  Mr. Marshall stated that he brought a 
report from Carol Williams regarding the termination, 
a letter from Dennis Budd and a letter from Lincoln 
Cox, Administrator.  Mr. Marshall read the letters 
from Carol Williams and Lincoln Cox. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#+(�,7#����,��)��5���"���:<%�
�#,,#��,7+,���"��+�%7+���(�(�)�,��)3�'(#�97#)�7#�
�#+(�,7#��#,,#�"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(���"��+�%7+���,��,#���,7#�
&�+�(�+$�',���"�&'((��,7#�)#9������%#(�
%'�#�8�%��" 
 
Mr. Marshall responded that Mr. Budd has been 
licensed 10 to 15 years. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5���"��+�%7+���7+%�+).�
;'#%,��)%��#*+�(�)*���"�&'((<%�,.�#��5���3#)%#��)�
�#*+�(�,����"��+�%7+��<%��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��
%'�#�8�%��)��#;'��#�#),%"����"�(#��,"�	'$�)�
#:��+�)#(�,7+,���"�&'((��%�+���3#)%#(��+���+*#�+)(�



Page 19 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

6+���.��7#�+��%,�?�6�@"��
#�+%-#(���"��+�%7+���
�5�+)��6��3�'�(�%'�#�8�%#�7��"  
 
Mr. Marshall responded that about 2 years ago the 
Board stated that as long as the supervisor was a 
mental health therapist and approved, they could 
supervise him. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��
�#;'��#�#),�,7+,���"��+�%7+����'%,�$#�%'�#�8�%#(�
$.�+�
�3#)%#(����)�3+����3�+�����-#���
���"��
#�
%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�9�'�(�7+8#�,��(�%3'%%�,7#�
�%%'#��5���"��+�%7+���$#�)*�%'�#�8�%#(�$.�+)��6�"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(��5�,7#�#��%�+)�
����#����.#(�+,�
,7#�5+3���,."�
 
Mr. Marshall responded that there is not an LCSW 
employed and the only LCSW available is his cousin.  
He stated that Milford is a rural area and he is 
requesting the Board to be lenient and approve Mr. 
Budd, the MFT, to supervise him.  He explained that 
there is a specific program to be approved as an MFT 
supervisor and Mr. Budd has completed that program.  
Mr. Marshall stated that Mr. Budd has had the MFT 
supervisor certification for about 4 years.  He stated 
that Mr. Budd is very competent and, as the agency is 
new, it cannot afford at this time to employ 3 
therapists, Mr. Budd, Mr. Marshall and an LCSW to 
supervise.  Mr. Marshall stated that the facility has 
agreed to hire him as a favor as he is from Milford and 
would like to be there to work. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5�,7#�&�+�(�7+%�,7#�
��#��*+,�8#�,��37+)*#�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��
5����+)�
����,��+)��6��,#����+���.�+)(�,7#)�
�#8�#9�+*+�)�+,�+��+,#��(+,#"�
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#���%�%�#3�5�3��)�,7#��#;'��#�#),��5�,7#�
%'�#�8�%���$#�)*�+)�
���"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�
&�+�(��+.�9+),�,��3�)%�(#��+�#)(�)*�,7#���(#���5�
,7#�#��%�)���)#�#�%#�+8+��+$�#"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�
,7#��#�%�#3,�8#��5�,7#��6���%�+���,,�#�(�55#�#),�,7 +)�
,7#�%�3�+��9��-#�"���7#��55#�#(�,��3+���,7#�	��5���
+(8�3#��)�,7#�%�,'+,��)"�



Page 20 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�
��"�	,,+��+7�3�+��5�#(�,7+,�,7#�3�)%�(#�+,��)�9�'�( �
$#��)�.�5���+�,#����+�.��#���(��5�,��#"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��,�9�'�(��)�.�$#�
,#����+�.�+)(�,7#�&�+�(�3�'�(�%�#3�5.�,7+,�,7#�
%'�#�8�%���$#�+����8#(�5����)#���),7��=���),7%����
A���),7%"�
�
�%"��+:�)��#5,�,7#��##,�)*�,��3�),+3,�,7#�	�"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5���"��+�%7+���7+(�+).�
�,7#���%%'#%�,7+,�3�'�(�$#�(�%3'%%#(��)��%"��+:�)<%�
+$%#)3#"�
 
Mr. Marshall responded that he wants to do what the 
Board asks of him.  He stated that he is hoping he is at 
the end of the probationary process.  He stated that 
being at the end will hopefully give the Board a sense 
of security.  He stated that the Board has encouraged 
him to find employment that he likes and would 
encourage the Board to view this change as a good 
thing.  Mr. Marshall stated that Mr. Budd will look at 
and discuss ethical boundaries with him. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,��%"��+:�)��%�
37#3-�)*�,��$#�%'�#��,��%�+�������+,#�5�����"�
�+�%7+���,��$#�')(#���6��%'�#�8�%��)"��
#�%,+,#(�
,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��%�%'����,�8#��)�,7#�(#8#����#),��5�
��"��+�%7+��<%�3+�##��+)(���5�+33����(+,��)%�3+)�
$#��+(#��,7#�&�+�(�9����*�8#�,7#��#;'#%,�%#���'%�
3�)%�(#�+,��)"  
 
Mr. Marshall responded that he would have to start 
looking for other employment if the Board tells him he 
cannot have an MFT supervisor. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��%�
%'����,�8#��5���"��+�%7+���9��-�)*�$',�(�#%�)�,�
7+8#�,7#�+',7���,.�,��%+.�97#�#�7#�3+)�+)(�3+)<,�
9��-"�
�
��"�6�+)(%#)�+%-#(��5��,��%�+��#%�(#),�+��5+3���,." 
 
Mr. Marshall responded that the boys live there as it is 
a residential facility. 



Page 21 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

 
�%"��+:�)��#,'�)#(�,��,7#��##,�)*"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+, �
%7#�9+%�')+$�#�,��3�),+3,�,7#�	��$',�(�(�(�%3'%%�
,7#�%�,'+,��)�9�,7�+)�,7#���+)+*#�"���%"��+:�)�
3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#�#)8���)�#),��%�+�%+5#����+3#�
5�����"��+�%7+���,��9��-"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,7#�# �
�%�+)�
��� �+8+��+$�#�,7#)�,7#�&�+�(�%7�'�(�)�,�
3�)%�(#��,7#��6�"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,7#�
&�+�(�9�'�(�+����8#�,7#��6��5���+�5#9���),7%�
,7#)�97.�9�'�(�,7#.�)�,�+����8#�7���,��3����#,#�
,7#����$+,��)+�.�%'�#�8�%��)"�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�#��+.�+)�,7#��

�����)����5��(�,7+,���"��+�%7+����%�')+9+�#��5��
7�9#8#���,7#��6��9��-%�+,�,7#�5+3���,.�+)(�9�'�(�
$#�+$�#�,���8#�%##���"��+�%7+��<%�9��-�$#,,#��,7+)�
+)��',%�(#�%'�#�8�%��"  
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�%'�#�8�%��)��%�)�,�5���+�
)#9�����$',��,��%�5���+����$+,��)#��9�,7�$�')(+�.�
�%%'#%"���
 
��"�	,,+��+7�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�9�'�(�%'����,�,7#�
37+)*#�+%��6�<%�+�%��7+8#�+�3�(#��5�#,7�3%"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�3�'�(�+�#)(�,7#�
�,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��5����,7#��#;'��#�#),��5�+)�

����%'�#�8�%���,��+)�+����8#(��#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+��%,"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�3���#),#(�,7+,��5��,��%�+)�
+����8#(��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+��%,���5�,7#��#���,%�+� #�
')%+,�%5+3,��.��,7#�&�+�(�3�'�(�,7#)��#;'��#���"�
�+�%7+���,��7+8#�+�(�55#�#),�%'�#�8�%��"�
�
��"�6�+)(%#)��+(#�+���,��)�,��+�#)(�,7#�
�,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��,��+���9���"��+�%7+���,��$#�
%'�#�8�%#(�$.�+)�+����8#(��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+��%,�
+)(���5�,7#��#���,%��)(�3+,#���"��+�%7+����%�)�,�
(��)*�+%�7#�%7�'�(����,7#�%'�#�8�%����%�)�,�
+�������+,#��,7#)��#;'��#�+)�,7#���#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+��%,�,��$#�,7#�%'�#�8�%��"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�



Page 22 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(���"��+�%7+���97#)�7#�
%,+�,%�%##�)*�3��#),%" 
 
Mr. Marshall responded that he was waiting until after 
this meeting to be sure his supervisor was approved.  
He stated that he will hold his request for early 
termination and submit it at a later time. 
 
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(�,7#�&�+�(��5�,7#.�9+),�,7#�
%'�#�8�%���,��%'$��,���),7�.��#���,%"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7�%��%�+�)#9�
+*#)3.�9�,7�+�)#9�%'�#�8�%���+)(�,7#��#���,%�)##(�
,��$#�%'$��,,#(���),7�."�
�
�%"��+:�)��#��)(#(���"��+�%7+���,7+,�7#��'%,�
%'$��,�+��#,,#��,��3�)5����7#��#5,��),#*��,.�
�'%#�
9�,7�,7#�(+,#��5�,#���)+,��)"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,���"��+�%7+����'%,�
+�%��%'$��,�+��#,,#��5����,7#�5+3���,.�,��3�)5����, 7+,�
7#��%�9��-�)*�,7#�#"����"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�
��"�&'((�(�(�)�,��)3�'(#��)�7�%��#,,#��,7+,�7#�7+%�
�#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��+)(�9����)##(�,��
%'$��,�+)�,7#���#,,#��,��8#��5.�7#�7+%��#+(��,�+)(� �%�
9����)*�,��%'�#�8�%#"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#��#,,#�%�)##(�,��$#�9��,,# )�
�)�
�%,�+)(�6�')(�E�',7�	3+(#�.��#,,#�7#+("�
�
�7#�3�+��5�#(�5�����"��+�%7+���,7+,�7#�9����)##(�,� �
5����9>'��,��$#�%'�#�,7#�5����9�)*��%�%'$��,,#(!�

�" � 	��#,,#���5�)�,�5�3+,��)�5����7����#*+�(�)*�
,7#�37+)*#��)�#����.�#),"�

�" � 	��#,,#��5������"�&'((��)��#,,#�7#+(�
�#*+�(�)*�7+8�)*��#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#��+)(�%,+,#�7�%�9����)*)#%%�,��%'�#�8�%#�
+)(�7#�����"��+�%7+���,��$#�%'33#%%5'���)�
7�%����$+,��)"�

="� 	��#,,#��5����,7#�	*#)3.��)��#,,#�7#+(�
�#*+�(�)*���"��+�%7+��<%�#����.�#),��
7+8�)*��#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��+)(�
%,+,#�,7#���9����)*)#%%�,��7#�����"��+�%7+���
,��$#�%'33#%%5'���)�7�%����$+,��)"�

�



Page 23 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5�����"��+�%7+���,��
�##,�+*+�)�2'�.���������"��

  
��!���4"�"   
Henry McCloyn, Probationary Interview Mr. McCloyn met for his probationary interview. 

 
Ms. Stowe-St. Clair conducted the interview. 
 
Mr. McCloyn informed the Board that he is now 
employed. 
 
�%"��,�9#>�,"���+���%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)D&�+�(�
�#3#�8#(�+��#,,#��5����
�*7�+)(���(*#��#*+�(�)*�
7�%�$#�)*�#����.#(��,7#.�7+8#��#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�
+)(���(#��+)(�+�#�9����)*�,��+%%�%,�7����)�$#�)*�
%'33#%%5'���)�7�%����$+,��)"�
 
Mr. McCloyn responded that he wanted to be sure 
Highland Ridge understood the issues that caused him 
to be on probation, what his requirements are and their 
requirements as the employer.  He stated that they 
understand and are willing to employ him. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#;'#%,#(���"��3���.)�,��#:��+�)�97+,�
7#�,��(�,7#�%'�#�8�%����#*+�(�)*�,7#���
�#%��)%�$���,�#%"�
 
Mr. McCloyn responded that he told the supervisor 
that they would be required to meet with him weekly, 
review his notes in the files and provide monthly 
reports for the first 6 months. 
 
�%"��,�9#>�,"���+����)5���#(�,7#�&�+�(�,7+,���"�
�3���.)<%�(�'*�,#%,�)*��)(�3+,#%� �3�)%#3',�8#�
)#*+,�8#��#���,%"�
�
�7#�&�+�(�)�,#(�,7#��)5���+,��)"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(���"��3���.)��5�7#�7+%�%##)�1�"�
&.�)#��)�,7#�+�.�+)(�,���#%��)(�97#�#�7#��%�9�,7�
,7#�,7#�+�."�
 
Mr. McCloyn responded that he has seen Dr. Byrne 
once.  He stated that Dr. Byrne has requested the 
psychological report and the expert witness report 
from the Division.  Mr. McCloyn stated that he gave 



Page 24 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

Dr. Byrne the information and will be meeting again 
with him.  Mr. McCloyn stated that Dr. Byrne had 
terminated his therapy but now is of the opinion after 
reading the reports and speaking with Ms. Taxin from 
the Division that there would be a benefit for them to 
continue therapy. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�,+�-#(�9�,7�1�"�&.�)#�
+)(�7#�+%-#(�7#��,��7��(��55��)�,7#�,#���)+,��)��5�
,7#�+�.��#,,#��'),���7#��##,%�+*+�)�9�,7���"�
�3���.)"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�1�"�&.�)#��%�%,�����5� ,7#�
���)��)�,7+,�,7#�+�.�%7�'�(�$#�,#���)+,#(�7#�9����
9��,#�+)�,7#���#���,"�
�
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(���"��3���.)��5�7#�7+(�+).�
;'#%,��)%����3�)3#�)%�,��(�%3'%%�9�,7�,7#�&�+�("  
 
He responded that he did not. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�7+(�,��(���"��3���.)�
,7+,�%��#,7�)*�9�'�(���#)�'��5���7��"�
�
��"�	,,+��+7�3���#),#(�,7+,�$.�*�8�)*�,7#�+*#)3.�
5'���(�%3��%'�#���"��3���.)�9�������$+$�.�7+8#�+�
$#,,#��5�,��)�7�%�#����.�#),"�
�
�%"��,�9#>�,"���+���3���#),#(�,7+,���"��3���.)�
�%�(��)*�9#����)�7�%����$+,��)"���7#�#)3�'�+*#(�7�� �
,��3�),�)'#"�
 
�%"��+:�)��#��)(#(�,7#�&�+�(�,7+,���"��3���.)�
7+%�$##)��##,�)*���),7�.�5���,7#��+%,�5#9���),7%"��
�7#�+%-#(��5�,7#�&�+�(�9�'�(�3�)%�(#��7+8�)*�7���
�##,�;'+�,#��."�
�
�7#�&�+�(��#%��)(#(�,��7+8#���"��3���.)��##,�
;'+�,#��."�
�
�%"��+:�)��#;'#%,#(���"��3���.)�,��$#�%'�#�+�
�#���,��%�%'$��,,#(�5����1�"�&.�)#��)�+���),7�.�
$+%�%"�
 
Mr. McCloyn responded that he is planning to meet 
monthly with Dr. Byrne.  Mr. McCloyn then asked if 
the probation time is counting as he has not been 
employed for a few months. 



Page 25 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��+(#�+�
��,��)�5���,7#�,��#�,��3�'),�')�#%%��,�$#3+�#�+)�
#:,#)(#(��#���("�
�
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,���"��3���.)�7+%�$##)�
9��-�)*��)��#;'��#�#),%��',��)#(��)�7�%�
�,��'�+,��)�+)(���(#��+)(�,7#�,��#�7+%�$##)�
3�'),#("���7#��)5���#(���"��3���.)�,7+,�,7#�
&�+�(��#8�#9#(�+)(�+����8#(�7�%�+%%�*)#(�#%%+."��
�%"��+:�)��#��)(#(�7���,7+,�7�%�����'%,�$#���#>
+����8#(�+)(�7#��+.�5+:����#>�+���,7#�%.��+$���5�
���7#��%��),#�#%,#(��)�5���7#��+)(�,7#�&�+�(�,��$#�
%'�#��,��%�+�������+,#�+)(�,7#)�,��+����8#"���7#�
�#3���#)(#(���"��3���.)�3�),+3,��	���5���+)�
#,7�3%�+)(�%,+)(+�(%�3�'�%#"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�
+)�,7#�����$+,��)#��3����#,#(��)#�,7+,�9+%�
�#���,#(�,��$#�8#�.��)5���+,�8#"�
 
	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5�����"��3���.)�,��
�##,�+*+�)�2'�.���������"�

  
��!=��4"�"�,���!���4"�"� Lunch Break 
  
�!���4"�"   
Enrique A. Velasquez, Probationary Interview Mr. Velasquez met for his probationary interview. 

 
Board members and Division staff were introduced to 
Mr. Velasquez. 
 
Ms. Taxin conducted the interview. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#;'#%,#(���"�0#�+%;'#F�,��#:��+�)�,7#�
�#+%�)�7�%���3#)%#�9+%��#8�-#(�+)(�,��'�(+,#�,7#�
&�+�(��)�97+,�7#�7+%�$##)�(��)*�5���#����.�#),��
#,3"��%�)3#�,7#��#8�3+,��)" 
 
Mr. Velasquez responded that he was in a private 
practice as a Licensed Clinical Social Worker from 
1995 to 1997.  He stated that during that time he made 
an unwise choice and had a romantic relationship with 
a client.  Mr. Velasquez explained that after the 
revocation he worked at the Salt Lake Community 
College (SLCC).  He stated that after many years an 
opportunity for part time employment with the 
Catholic Services became available.  He stated that he 



Page 26 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

applied and was hired for the position as a Counselor.  
Mr. Velasquez stated that he thought he only had to 
have his Master of Social Work degree and work 
under supervision of a Licensed Clinical Social 
Worker (LCSW) to conduct therapy for the Catholic 
Services.  He stated that he did not understand that he 
had to take and examination and then practice under 
supervision of an LCSW.  He stated that a staff 
member at SLCC turned him in for unlicensed practice 
and the Division filed charges for practice without a 
license.  He explained that the charges were dismissed 
after he completed community service hours.  He 
concluded that he is now in the process of reinstating 
his LCSW license. 
 
�%"��+:�)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,���+3,�3#�9�,7�',�+���3#)%# �
�%�+�3����)+���%%'#"���7#�+�%��%,+,#(�%7#�(�(�)�,�
')(#�%,+)(���"�0#�+%;'#F<%�#:��+)+,��)��#*+�(�)*�
9��-�)*�+%�+�����+%�,7#�
+9%�+)(��'�#%�(��)�,�
+((�#%%�7�%�#:��+)+,��)"���7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,���"�
0#�+%;'#F�7+%�3����#,#(��+�,��5�,7#����3#%%�+)(��%�
)�9���3#)%#(�+%�+����$+,��)+�.�
���"�
�
�%"��+:�)��#8�#9#(���"�0#�+%;'#F<����$+,��)+�.�
�#;'��#�#),%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�7+%�%'����#(���" �
0#�+%;'#F�9�,7�,7#���%,��5�+����8#(��%.37���*�%,%�
5���7���,��%#�#3,��)#�5���+��%.37���*�3+��#8+�'+,�� )"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5�,7#��#;'��#�#),�5���+�
�%.37���*�3+��#8+�'+,��)��%�$+%#(��)�,7#��)3�(#),�
,7+,��#(�,��,7#��#8�3+,��)"�
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#��%.37���*�3+��
#8+�'+,��)��%�$+%#(��)�,7#��)3�(#),�,7+,��#(�,��,7# �
�#8�3+,��)�,��$#�%'�#���"�0#�+%;'#F��%�%+5#�,��
��+3,�3#�+%��,�7+%�$##)�%���+).�.#+�%�%�)3#�7#�9+%�
�)���+3,�3#"�
 
Mr. Velasquez stated that he will be getting the 
psychological evaluation within the next couple of 
weeks.  He stated he will contact Ms. Taxin regarding 
which evaluator he will be seeing after he has made 
his choice.  Mr. Velasquez stated that he will contact 
Ms. Taxin regarding an approved therapist if the 
evaluation recommends therapy. 
 



Page 27 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)D&�+�(�(��
)�,��#3���#)(�%�#3�5�3�,7#�+��%,%�$',�,7#�,7#�+��%, �
��"�0#�+%;'#F�37��%#%��'%,�$#���#>+����8#(�
$#5��#�7#�*�#%��),��,7#�+�."���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��5��� "�
0#�+%;'#F<%��)%'�+)3#�7+%�+���%,��5�+����8#(�
,7#�+��%,%�7#��+.�%'$��,�+�)+�#�+)(��#%'�#�5���
,7#�1�8�%��)D&�+�(�,���#8�#9"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�
�'%,�9+�,�'),���+5,#��,7#�#8+�'+,��)�,��5�)(��',�,7 #�
�#3���#)(+,��)��5�,7#�#8+�'+,��"�
�
Mr. Velasquez commented that he has submitted his 
resume several places regarding part time employment 
as an LCSW. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�97#)�7#��%�#����.#(��,7#�
#����.#��9����)##(�,���#+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#��+)(�9��,#�+��#,,#���#*+�(�)*�,7+,�,7#.�7+8#�
�#+(��,���%�9����)*�,��%'����,���"�0#�+%;'#F��)�$#� )*�
%'33#%%5'���)�7�%����$+,��)��+)(�9����%'$��,�
��),7�.�9��,,#)��#���,%"�
 
Mr. Velasquez responded that he understands.  He 
stated that he has completed the required essay and he 
submitted it to the Board for review. 
 
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#�#%%+.�9+%��#;'��#(�
,��$#�%'$��,,#(�$.�,7#�� )( �+����),�#),"���7#�
3������#),#(���"�0#�+%;'#F�5���3����#,�)*��,�
������,��,7+,�(+,#"���7#�+%-#(��5�7#�9�'�(���-#�,��
�#+(��,�5���,7#�&�+�("  
 
Mr. Velasquez read the essay to the Board. 
 
��"�	,,+��+7��+(#�+���,��)�,��+33#�,�,7#�#%%+.�+%�
7+8�)*��#,�,7+,��#;'��#�#),��5�,7#��,��'�+,��)�+)(�
��(#�"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"�
�
�7#�$�+�(�8�,#�9+%�')+)���'%"�
 
�%"��+:�)�+%-#(���"�0#�+%;'#F��5�7#�7+(�+).����
�)5���+,��)�5���,7#�&�+�(�,���#8�#9�,����#>
+����8#"  
 
Mr. Velasquez responded that he has not thought of 



Page 28 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

the CE requirements yet.  He stated that he is of the 
opinion that he has completed what he could to date 
until he obtains employment. 
 
�%"��+:�)�3������#),#(���"�0#�+%;'#F�5���
3����#,�)*�,7#�#%%+.�+)(�%,+�,�)*�,7#����3#%%�5���
,7#�#8+�'+,��)�+%�7#�7+%��)�.�7+(�,7#��,��'�+,��)�
+)(���(#��+�5#9�(+.%"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(���"�0#�+%;'#F��5�7#��%�
3'��#),�.���+3,�3�)*"�
 
Mr. Velasquez responded that he is not currently 
practicing.  He stated that he has his submitted his 
application and resume for a position.  He stated that 
he might want to be in full time clinical practice but 
not at this time.  Mr. Velasquez asked if he can call 
himself an LCSW and if he has to identify that he is 
on probation. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�7#��+.�%�*)�,7#�37+�,%�

���"���7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�7�%���3#)%#�9����%7�9�7#�
�%�+)�
�����)����$+,��)"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�
%7�'�(���%,�,7#���3#)%#�+)(��5�3��#),%�+%-�7#�%7�'�(�
#:��+�)"�
�
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�3���#),#(�,7+,���"�0#�+%;'#F�
7+%�)#8#���#,�9�,7�+).�&�+�(�,��(�%3'%%�7�%�
')���5#%%��)+��3�)('3,�9�,7�+�5���#��3��#),"��
#�
+%-#(�7�9�,7#�&�+�(�%7�'�(�(#+��9�,7�+�
���$+,��)#��,7+,�7+%�7+(�%���'37�,��#�,�+)%���#�
%�)3#�,7#�#8#),"�
�
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#����$+,��)+�.�
�),#�8�#9%�%7�'�(�$#�,7#�%+�#�+%�+).��,7#��
�),#�8�#9"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,���"�0#�+%;'#F�7+%�$##)�
+����5#%%���,#+37�)*�%,'(#),%�+)(�,7#�&�+�(�%7�'�(�
+%-�;'#%,��)%��#*+�(�)*�,7#��#,7�(%�7#���+)%�,��
����#�#),�5���,7#�+�."���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�$#��#8# %�
7#�')(#�%,+)(%�97+,�7#�(�(�+)(�7�9��,�+55#3,#(�,7#�
3��#),"�
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+)(��%"��,�9#>�,"���+���
3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#.�9#�#�*��)*�,��+%-�7�9���"�
0#�+%;'#F�3�'�(�)�,�')(#�%,+)(�97.�7#�9�'�(�
)##(�+���3#)%#�,����+3,�3#�97#)�7#��%�+)�#('3+,���



Page 29 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

$',�(#3�(#(�)�,�,��+,�,7�%�,��#"�
 
�%"��3	55##�3���#),#(�,7+,�%7#�3�'�(�)�,�
')(#�%,+)(�97.���"�0#�+%;'#F�3�'�(�,7�)-�7#�
3�'�(���+3,�3#���3�+�����-�9�,7�',�+).���3#)%#"�
�
�%"��+:�)�3���#),#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�%7�'�(��+-#�
%'�#���"�0#�+%;'#F�')(#�%,+)(%�,7#������,+)3#��5�
$#�)*���3#)%#(�,����+3,�3#��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�.�
+)(�')(#�%,+)(%�,7#�
+9%�+)(��'�#%"��
	((�,��)+��.��%7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�+�%��)##(%�
,��$#�%'�#�7#��%�%+5#�,����+3,�3#"�
�
	)�+����),�#),�9+%��+(#�5�����"�0#�+%;'#F�,��
�##,�+*+�)��+.���������"�

  
	44
��	�������0���!   
  
Barbara Gearig, LCSW Application Review Sarah Hoffman, Licensing Specialist, met to explain to 

the Board the issues in the application. 
 
�%"�
�55�+)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*��%�
3'��#),�.���3#)%#(�+%�+����"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"�
�#+��*����*�)+��.�%'$��,,#(�7#��+����3+,��)�5���

������3#)%'�#�$.�#)(��%#�#),�5������37�*+)"��
�%"�
�55�+)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*�7+%�7+(�7#+�,7�
���$�#�%�5���,7#��+%,�5#9�.#+�%�+)(�9+%�')+$�#�,��
(�3'�#),�,7#��#;'��#(������7�'�%��5���3#)%#(�
�#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�.�#:�#��#)3#�9�,7�)�,7#��+%,�=�
.#+�%�+%��#;'��#(�5���#)(��%#�#),"���7#�#:��+�)#(�
,7+,�,7#�1�8�%��)�7+%�,+-#)��),��3�)%�(#�+,��)�
(�%+$���,�#%�+)(����)#%%�97#)��#8�#9�)*�5���
#)(��%#�#),�+)(�+%-#(��%"��#+��*�5���+��#,,#��
5����7#��1�3,���,��(�3'�#),�,7#����)#%%�+)(�,7#�
#:,#),��5�,7#����)#%%"���%"�
�55�+)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%" �
�#+��*<%�1�3,���+����8#(�7#��,���#,'�)�,��9��-�
+)(��%"��#+��*�(#3��)#(�,���#,'�)�,��9��-�5���
+)�,7#��.#+�"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*��%�
�#;'#%,�)*�,7#�1�8�%��)�,��9+�8#�,7#������7�'�%��5�
%'�#�8�%#(�#:�#��#)3#�+)(�+����8#�7#��5���,7#�

������3#)%#�+%�%7#�7+(�+����8+,#���+3,�3#�5����
�  ��,��+$�',�2+)'+�.��������"���%"�
�55�+)�
%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*�9����)##(�,��,+-#�+)(��+%%�
,7#�	��&�3��)�3+��#:+��)+,��)�+%�%7#�7+%��)�.�
3����#,#(�,7#�	��&��+%,#�%�#:+��)+,��)"�
 



Page 30 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

Mr. de St. Aubin asked if the Michigan requirements 
for licensure are similar to the Utah requirements. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�%7#�7+%�+33#�,#(��#,,#�%�
5����#����.#�%�+)(D����##�%��#*+�(�)*���+3,�3#��5�
�����7�'�%��)�,7#��+%,�=�.#+�%�+)(�,7#��#,,#�%��%"�
�#+��*�%'$��,,#(�(�3'�#),�,7+,�,7#�9��,#��3+))�,�
8#��5.�,7#�9��-�#:�#��#)3#"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�
%7#�+�%��+33#�,%��>��6���%����+��#,,#��5����,7#�

'�+)��#%�'�3#%�$',��%"��#+��*�7+%�)�,�
%'$��,,#(�+).�+((�,��)+���)5���+,��)"���%"��+:�)�
%,+,#(�,7+,��+�+7�
�55�+)��+(#�%��#��7�)#�3+��%�
,��,7#��)(�8�('+�%�97��9��,#�,7#��#,,#�%�+)(�,7#.�
7+8#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#.�3+))�,�8#��5.�,7#�
#)(��%#�#),�7�'�%�+%��%"��#+��*�7+%�)�,�9��-#(�
3�),�)'�'%�.�+)(��%"��#+��*�9+%�;'�,#�5��3#5'���)�
+%-�)*�,7#��,��9��,#�,��,7#�1�8�%��)"�
�
Mr. Attallah stated that he could not understand why 
there was no documentation submitted from a 
colleague. 
 
�%"�
�55�+)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,�%7#��#3#�8#(�+��7�)#�
3+���5�����)#��#�%�)�97��%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�(�(�)�,�5## ��
3��5��,+$�#�9��,�)*�+��#,,#��+%��%"��#+��*�7+(�
$##)��)����8+,#���+3,�3#"���%"�
�55�+)�%,+,#(�,7+,�
97#)�%7#����*�)+��.�%��-#�9�,7��%"��#+��*�%7#�
�)5���#(�7#��,7+,��5�%7#�7+(�+����8+,#���+3,�3#�%7# �
3�'�(�+%-�+�3���#+*'#�,��9��,#�+��#,,#��,��3�)5����
,7#������7�'�%�+)(�,7#�1�8�%��)D&�+�(�9�'�(�
�#8�#9�,7#��#,,#�"���%"�
�55�+)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�
�#3#�8#(�+��#,,#��5����	))���)(�#�&�#)+.��)�
��37�*+)�97��%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�+)(��%"��#+��*�9#�#�
�)�+)�
1����3�+���#�8�3#%���%,�$',�7+(�)��
-)�9�#(*#��5�7#�����8+,#���+3,�3#"�
�
Mr. Attallah responded that private practice has some 
type of tax data that could be submitted. 
 
�%"��+:�)�+)(��%"�
�55�+)�%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*�
%,+,#(�,7#�#�9+%�)��9+.�,��%#�+�+,#�,7#��#*'�+��
�)3��#�5����7#�����8+,#���+3,�3#��)3��#"  
 
Mr. Attallah summarized that Ms. Gearig wants the 
Board to accept her word that she has the 4000 hours 
in a 3 year period prior to her illness, Ms. Gearig’s 



Page 31 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

doctor released her to return to work and she chose not 
to return to work.  He asked what choices the Board 
has. 
 
�%"�
�55�+)�#:��+�)#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*�3�),+3,#(�
7#��,7#�5��%,�,��#�+$�',�,7#�#)(��5�2'�.����,7#�
��((�#��5�	'*'%,��)����A�97#)��%"�
�55�+)�*+8#�
7#��#:+���#%��5�97+,�%7#�3�'�(�%#)(�5���
8#��5�3+,��)"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�)#:,�3�),+3,�9+% �
5����+���"��,#9+�,��)���8#�$#��A�����A�
�#*+�(�)*�3�+��5�3+,��)�5���7���,��%#)(�+��#,,#�"  
 
Mr. Attallah stated that he cannot see documentation 
that Ms. Gearig meets endorsement requirements and 
does not feel comfortable waiving the 4000 hours 
within 3 years endorsement requirement without any 
documentation. 
 
Mr. Frandsen asked if the Board has the authority to 
waive half the hours. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��%�$�')(�$.�
,7#�
+9%�+)(��'�#%�+)(�(�#%�)�,�7+8#�,7#�
+',7���,.�,��9+�8#�+).��5�,7#�7�'�%"����%"��+:�)�
%,+,#(�,7+,��%"��#+��*�9+%�*�8#)�,7#���,��)��5�
%'$��,,�)*�(�3'�#),+,��)��5������7�'�%��5�
%'�#�8�%#(���+3,�3#�5������37�*+)����
(�3'�#),+,��)��5�,7#������7�'�%��5���3#)%#(�
��+3,�3#�5�����3#)%'�#�$.�#)(��%#�#),"�
�
�%"�
�55�+)�3���#),#(�,7+,�%7#��)5���#(��%"�
�#+��*�,7+,�9�,7�',�%'$��,,�)*�+).�(�3'�#),+,��)�
%7#�9�'�(��##,�,7#��#;'��#�#),%��5��#�,�5�#(�
��3�+�����-#��+)(�,7+,��%�,7#�,.�#��5���3#)%#�,7#�
1�8�%��)�9�'�(�3�)%�(#��5���7#�"���%"�
�55�+)�
%,+,#(�,7+,�$�,7���,��)%�+)(��#;'��#�#),%�9#�#�
�',��)#(��)�,7#��#,,#��%7#�%#),�,���%"��#+��*"�
 
Mr. Frandsen made a motion for Ms. Gearig to either 
verify her clinical practice of 4000 hours within 3 
years to meet the requirements of endorsement or 
complete the requirements of the CSW license in Utah 
of 4000 hours of supervised experience. 
 
Mr. de St. Aubin seconded the motion. 
 



Page 32 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

The Board vote was unanimous. 
  
1���������������!�  
  
Concerns regarding Scope of Practice for 
Certified Social Worker Extern and Certified 
Social Worker Intern Licensing 

Ms. Taxin stated that the CSW Extern license does not 
apply to the Social Workers and has never been issued.  
She explained that the Extern license is for someone 
who is short in the education and wants to be able to 
practice while they complete the education 
requirements. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that several people who have applied 
for the Professional Counselor Extern license are 
deficient up to 8 classes or more and the Extern license 
has been issued to them.  Ms. Taxin referred the Board 
to 58-60-117(1)(d) of the Law that states the person 
has one or more deficiencies in course work, 
experience, or training.  Ms. Taxin stated that she 
believes that it is a harm to the public for a person to 
practice mental health therapy with 8 or more 
deficiencies as they do not meet the pre-requisites of 
the profession.  She stated that those with so many 
deficiencies do have the right degree and yet they want 
a license to work while they complete the education.  
She stated that a change would require the Law to be 
changed. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that 58-60-117(c) is also a problem 
as it allows anyone who holds an earned doctoral 
degree or master’s degree in a discipline that is a 
prerequisite for practice as a mental health therapist to 
apply for the Extern license.  She stated that many 
with a master’s degree in Psychology have applied and 
they have not completed a DSM class or an advanced 
assessment class and those are courses to assess and 
conduct mental health therapy. 
 
She then explained that the CSW Intern license is for a 
6 month period and intended for people to be able to 
work while they take and pass the examination to be 
licensed as a CSW.  She stated that several people who 
have the CSW Intern license have worked the full 6 
months and have never taken the examination for 
CSW licensure, are counting their hours toward the 
required 4000 hours of supervised experience and their 
employers think they are fully qualified to practice.  



Page 33 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

Ms. Taxin explained that the supervisors are saying 
the CSW Interns are wonderful mental health therapist 
and there are no problems in the work place.  She 
stated that some employers and supervisors are having 
the CSW Interns practice as CSW’s. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that there are also people in Utah 
who only have the GED and are great employees but 
to be engaged in mental health therapy they must have 
the required education and supervision.  She stated 
that licensees need to read their Laws and Rules and 
they are not. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�7#�(�#%�)�,�
$#��#8#�,7#�#��%�+����$�#��9�,7�,7#������),#�)�
�+)*'+*#"��
#�%,+,#(�,7+,�#����.#�%�+�#����$+$�.�
)�,�5+����+��9�,7�,7#������),#�)���3#)%#�+)(�,7#���
%3��#��5���+3,�3#"����"�(#��,"�	'$�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�
97#)�7#��#,�9�,7�,7#�*�+('+,�)*�3�+%%�7#��+(#��,�
3�#+��,7+,�,7#������),#�)���3#)%#��%�5���+�A���),7�
�#���(�+)(�3+))�,�$#��#)#9#(����#:,#)(#("��
#�
%,+,#(�,7+,�7#�7+%�+�%���+(#��,�3�#+��,7+,��5�+)�
�)(�8�('+��5+��%�,7#�	��&�#:+��)+,��)�,7#.��+.�
�#;'#%,�,7#� ��(+.�9+�,�)*��#���(�,���#,+-#�$#�
9+�8#(�+)(�	��&�9�����)�.�*�+),����5�,7�%#�
9+�8#�%" 
 
Ms. McCall stated that the CSW Interns are calling 
and asking for their license to be extended or renewed. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that two individuals have practiced 9 
months of which 6 were while licensed as a CSW 
Interns.  She stated that one person realized the license 
had expired but continued to work.  Ms. Taxin stated 
that the employer did not understand what the CSW 
Intern license was but when Ms. Taxin talked with the 
supervisor and explained the supervisor took 
immediate action.  Ms. Taxin stated that the 
individuals took the examination and passed and the 
licenses were issued.  She stated that one of the people 
started working several months prior to applying for 
and receiving the CSW Intern license. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that some of these people are 
competent but that she does not understand why the 
applicants and supervisors are not reading the Laws 



Page 34 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

and Rules so they are aware of the requirements. 
 
Ms. Taxin stated that she wanted the Board to be 
aware of these issues and if they hear of situations they 
should refer them to the Division or try to educate 
people on requirements.  She stated that she is 
considering sending a letter with each CSW Intern 
license to inform the CSW Intern that the Law allows 
for the Intern license to be issued and is limited to the 
time necessary to pass the examination required or for 
six months only, whichever occurs first. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)�+%-#(��5�,7#�
+9�9�'�(�+���9�5���
,7#�1�8�%��)�,���#;'��#�,7#������),#�)�,���#*�%,#��
5���,7#�#:+��)+,��)�9�,7�)�+�%�#3�5�3�,��#"  
 
Ms. Taxin responded that they only have the 6 month 
period and if they apply right away, they would have 
the opportunity to take the examination at least twice 
within that time frame.  She stated that people are 
working and using the system and then become 
frustrated when the 6 months is passed and they have 
to quit working until they are licensed. 
 
�7#�&�+�(�)�,#(�,7#��)5���+,��)"�

  
������4��1����!   
  
ASWB Correspondence The Board reviewed the following ASWB 

correspondence: 
1. ASWB Association News, February 2007.  ���

+3,��)�,+-#)"  
2. ASWB 2006 Examination Pass Rates.  �%"�

�+:�)��)5���#(�,7#�&�+�(�,7+,�	��&�
3�),+3,#(�7#��,���+-#�+��+)*#�#),%�5���,7#�
1�8�%��)�,����#>+����8#�+����3+),%�,��%�,�5���
,7#�#:+��)+,��)%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�	��&�
�)5���#(�7#��,7+,��,+7��%��)�.��)#��5�=�
�,+,#%�,7+,�(�#%�)�,���#>+����8#"���7#�%,+,#(�
,7+,�%7#�#:��+�)#(�,7+,��,+7�3�'�(�)�,���#>
+����8#�+,�,7�%�,��#�$+%#(��)�,7#��+�*#�
)'�$#���5����5#%%��)%�9#��#*'�+,#�8#�%'%�
��%,��,+,#%��#*'�+,�)*��)�.���3�+�����-"  

  
The Key Assistance Report The Board reviewed the Key Assistance Report.  ���

+3,��)�9+%�,+-#)"�



Page 35 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 
  
&��������6����4��0������������!   
  
Requested Revision to the December 2006 
Minutes regarding Robert Matotek 

Ms. Taxin stated that Robert Matotek contacted her 
regarding an error in the December 2006 minutes.  He 
informed Ms. Taxin that the minutes stated he worked 
at Ogden Regional and he really works at Weber 
County.  He requested the minutes be corrected. 
 
��"�(#��,"�	'$�)��+(#�+���,��)�5���,7�%�3���#3,��)�
,��$#��+(#��)�,7#�1#3#�$#����)',#%"����"�
6�+)(%#)�%#3�)(#(�,7#���,��)"���7#�&�+�(�8�,#�
9+%�')+)���'%"�

  
Mark de St. Aubin clarification Mr. de St. Aubin stated that Ms. Taxin requested the 

Board to write down 5 things that require the 
education and training of a Bachelor level licensee.  
He stated that Ms. Taxin requested the Board go into 
the depth of what the Bachelor level licensee does that 
is different that what a non-licensed person, such as a 
teacher, would do.  Mr. de St. Aubin asked Ms. Taxin 
and the Board to consider inviting public educators to 
meet with the Board for discussion of this subject. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#��#;'#%,#(�,7#�&�+�(�,��
9��,#���,7�)*%�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(��#�$#�%�$#��#8#��%�
,7#��'���%#��5�+���3�+���#�8�3#����-#��?���@����
,7#�(',�#%�,7#������#�5���%�,7+,��#;'��#�+���3#)%#" ��
�7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�=�&�+�(��#�$#�%�%'$��,,#(�,7#�
�)5���+,��)�+)(�+��)*�,7�%#�=��#%��)%#%�%7#�7+%�
97+,�%7#�9+%����-�)*�5��"���
�
�%"��+:�)�3�),�)'#(�+)(�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�7+%�7+(�
3���#%��)(#)3#��#*+�(�)*�,7#�����%3��#��5�
��+3,�3#�+)(�$#3+'%#��,��%�)�,�3�#+��%7#�3�),�)'#%�,��
�#3#�8#�;'#%,��)%"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�
�#;'#%,#(�,7#��,+7�
#+�,7��+�#�	%%�3�+,��)�,��
7+8#�,7#����#�$#�%��#+(�,7#��,+7�
+9%�+)(��'�#%�
+%�,7#�#�+�#��+).��#���#�97��+�#���+3,�3�)*�
�',%�(#�,7#���%3��#"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#��#;'#%,#(�
+).�;'#%,��)%�,7#��,+7�
#+�,7��+�#�	%%�3�+,��)�
�#3#�8#%�,��$#�%#),�,��7#��,��+)%9#�"���%"��+:�)�
%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#��%���#)�,��7#+��)*�97+,��%�
�#+%�)+$�#�5���,7#�')��3#)%#(��#�%�)�,��$#�(��)*�
+)(�,7�'*7,��5�,7#�&�+�(�3+�#�'��9�,7�+���%,��5�
97+,�,7#��5�97+,�,7#�(',�#%����%3��#��5���+3,�3#�+� #�



Page 36 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

5���,7#������,�9�'�(�3�+��5.�,7#�
��%')(#�%,+)(�)*%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#��#+��,.��%�
,7+,�#8#�.,7�)*�,7#�&+37#�����#8#���#�%�)�(�#%��%�
)�,�%��#,7�)*�,7+,��#;'��#%�+���3#)%#"���7#�%,+,#(�
,7+,�,7#�#�+�#��#���#�97��)##(�,7#�#:,�+�3�'�%#%�
+)(�+�#�3����+�)�)*�,7+,�,7#�#�+�#�)��3�'�%#%�,��$# �
5�')(�,7+,��##,�,7#�3��,#��+��5�,7#�
+9"���%"��+:�) �
%,+,#(�,7+,�7#��*�+���%�,���(#),�5.�+�#+%�97#�#�,7#�

+9�)##(%�,��$#�37+)*#(�,��+%%�%,�,7#�	%%�3�+,��)��%�
�+-�)*�%��#�37+)*#%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�%7#�7+%�
%#8#�+�����5#%%��)%��#;'���)*�)#9��'�#%�+)(�,7#�
��3�+�����-��'�#�37+)*#%�9����)##(�,��$#���#�+�#(�
+5,#��,7#��,7#�%"�
 
Mr. de St. Aubin stated that the University of Utah is 
in the process of preparing a practice methods course 
and they plan to offer the course in the fall. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�1�)�&#3-�+,�,7#��)�8#�%�,.��5 �
47�#)�:�+��#+(.�7+%�=�3�'�%#%��)���+3#�,���##,�,7#�
��+3,�3#��#,7�(%��#;'��#�#),�+)(�7#�9����+)(�(�#%�
�#8�#9�,�+)%3���,%�,��+%%�%,�,7#�1�8�%��)�+)(�,7#�
+����3+),"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��5�,7#�&�+�(�,+-#%�%,#�%�
,��3�+��5.�%��#�+�#+%�,7#)��,�9�'�(�)�,�$#�+%�
�8#�97#���)*"  
 
Mr. de St. Aubin suggested Ms. Taxin contact Deb 
Burkham regarding a network of long-term advocates 
in nursing homes for assistance. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�*�+���%�,��*�8#�,7#�
$#%,�3+�#�$',�,7#�#�+�#��+).�97��7+8#�3�),�)'+��.�
$##)��',��5�3�����+)3#"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�
1�8�%��)�7+%��#3#�8#(�3����+�),%�+)(�,7#�#�+�#�
3�+��5�3+,��)�37+)*#%�,7+,�)##(�,��,+-#���+3#��)�,7 #�
�'�#%�,��7#����#���#�3��#��),��3�����+)3#"�
�
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�&�+�(�3�'�(��)8��8#�
�,7#�%�+%�,7#����3#%%���8#%�+��)*�$',��%7#�
�#3���#)(#(�,7+,�5���)�9�B'%,�7+8#�,7#�&�+�(�
3�+��5.�%��#�%�#3�5�3�+�#+%"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,��+.$#�
=�+*#)3�#%�3�'�(�$#�*�8#)�,7#���%,��5�%3��#��5�
��+3,�3#��,#�%�,7+,��#;'��#�+���3#)%#�$#5��#�+��'�# %�

#+��)*��%�%37#('�#("�
 
Board members responded that Ms. Taxin’s 



Page 37 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

recommendation would be acceptable to them. 
 
Mr. Frandsen asked if the Board would give him a 
simple list as he is the public member and not familiar 
enough with the profession to know what a Bachelor 
level person can and cannot do.�

  
Mark de St. Aubin Question Mr. de St. Aubin asked the Ms. Taxin and the Board if 

the Rules could be changed to allow Social Worker 
student in their 2nd year internships that are working at 
agencies who want to hire them after graduation to 
continue to work after graduation.  He stated that there 
is about a 6 week period when the continuity of care 
for their case load is dropped until these people obtain 
their license.  He asked how other professions handle 
this type of situation. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�,7#�
+9�(�#%�)�,�+���9�
+)�')��3#)%#(��#�%�)�,����+3,�3#"���7#�%,+,#(�,7+,� �5�
,7#��)�8#�%�,�#%��#,+�)�,7#%#��#���#��)�,7#�
��+3,�3'�����*�+��,7#.�3�'�(�3�),�)'#�9��-�)*�+%�
,7#.�)##(�,7#��)%'�+)3#�3�8#�+*#"���%"��+:�)�%,+,#( �
,7+,��5�,7#��)�8#�%�,.�3�8#�%�,7#���,�9�'�(�$#��-�
$',�,7#�1�8�%��)��%�')+$�#�,��3�8#��,7#�"  
 
Mr. de St. Aubin stated that if they could continue as 
registered students they could be covered and could 
continue to work.  He stated that continuing as a 
student would delay them completing their graduate 
requirements and when those requirements have been 
met the registrar’s office start preparing their 
transcripts. 
 
�%"��+:�)�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�#��%�+��'����)��,7#��
���5#%%��)%�$#,9##)�*�+('+,��)�+)(���3#)%�)*"�
 
Mr. de St. Aubin asked if the MSW graduates could 
practice at the Bachelor level as an SSW as that would 
not jeopardize client care. 
 
�%"��+:�)��#%��)(#(�,7+,�%7#�9�'�(�)�,�
�#3���#)(�,7+,�,7#.���+3,�3#�+,�,7#�&+37#�����#8#��
+%�,7#�����*�+('+,#�7+%�$##)�(��)*��#),+��7#+�,7�
,7#�+�.�+)(�,7#�
+9�(�#%�)�,�+���9�,7#�&+37#����
�#8#��,��3�)('3,��#),+��7#+�,7�,7#�+�."���7#�%,+,#( �
,7+,�)���)#�9�'�(�9+),�,7#���+$���,.�+)(�%7#�3�'�(�



Page 38 of 38 
Minutes 
Social Work Board Meeting 
April 12, 2007 
 

)�,�9��,#�+��#,,#��*�8�)*�,7#���#���%%��)�,��9��-"� �
�7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�����*�+('+,#�%7�'�(�)�,�$#�
�#%��)%�$�#�5���+�97��#�3+%#��+("���%"��+:�)�%,+,#( �
,7+,��,�+��#+�%�,7+,�+*#)3�#%�+�#���%'%�)*�,7#�
%,'(#),%��5�,7#.�+�#�*�8�)*�,7#��+�7#+8.�3+%#��+("�
�
�7#�%,+,#(�,7+,�,7#�
+9�9�'�(�7+8#�,��$#�37+)*#(�
���,�+)%3���,%�9�'�(�7+8#�,��$#��%%'#(���*7,�+9+.�
,��+���9���3#)%'�#����#(�+,#�.�'��)�*�+('+,�)*"  

  
��G������������
�1�
�1�6��!  May 17, 2007 
  
	12����!  A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Frandsen.  Ms. 

Smith seconded the motion.  �7#�&�+�(�8�,#�9+%�
')+)���'%"�
 
The time is  2:42 pm and this meeting is adjourned. 

  
  
Note: These minutes are not intended to be a verbatim transcript but are intended to record the significant features of the 
business conducted in this meeting.   Discussed items are not necessarily shown in the chronological order they occurred. 
 
  
 July 12, 2007   (ss) Tammer Attallah  
Date Approved Chairperson, Social Work Board 
  
  
  
 July 12, 2007   (ss) Noel Taxin  
Date Approved Bureau Manager, Division of Occupational & 

Professional Licensing 
 


